
         Planning & Community Dev.   
                                  117 N Molalla Avenue 

                                                                        PO Box 248 
                                         Molalla, Oregon 97038 
                                       Phone: (503) 759-0219 

                                                                                          Co              communityplanner@cityofmolalla.com 
 

City of Molalla ◼ Community Planning & Development  ◼  117 N. Molalla Avenue, Molalla, OR 97038  ◼  (503) 759-0219 
 

Chairman Rae Lynn Botsford | Commissioner Jennifer Satter | Commissioner Doug Eaglebear |   
Commissioner Steve Deller | Commissioner Jacob Giberson | Commissioner Connie Ferrens 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
Molalla Planning Commission 

6:30 PM, August 5, 2020 
 

Meeting Location: Molalla Adult Center 
315 Kennel Avenue.  
Molalla, OR  97038 

 
The Planning Commission Meeting will begin at 6:30pm.  The Planning Commission has adopted Public 
Participation Rules. Copies of these rules and public comment cards are available at the entry desk. 
Public comment cards must be turned in prior to the start of the Commission meeting.  The City will 
endeavor to provide a qualified bilingual interpreter, at no cost, if requested at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting. To obtain services call the City Recorder at (503) 829-6855. 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER  
 

II. FLAG SALUTE AND ROLL CALL 
 

III. PUBLIC COMMENT – Limited to 3 minutes per person 
 

IV. MINUTES: 

• Minutes form the July 1, 2020 Planning Commission Meeting 
 

V. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

• Public Hearing and consideration of Site Design Review application –  
SDR03-2020 – requesting approval of 37,000 sq. ft. of new retail space, “Grocery 
Outlet”, “Dollar Tree” and one undefined retail space.  The proposed location is 
Lots 1, 2 and 3 of the Cascade Center development along W. Main Street, south 
of Leroy Avenue. 
 

VI. DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

• Newly adopted Temporary Food Truck Ordinance 

• Tree Retention Code Discussion 
 

VII. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 



Page 1 – January 15, 2020 Planning Commission Minutes  

 
 

Molalla Planning Commission 

MINUTES Molalla Adult 
Center 

315 Kennel Ave., Molalla, OR 
97038 

July 1, 2020 
 
 
 

 
The July 1, 2020 meeting of the Molalla Planning Commission was called to order by Chair Rae 

Lynn Botsford at 6:32pm. This was followed by the flag salute and roll call. 
 

 
COMMISSIONER ATTENDANCE:  STAFF IN ATTENDANCE: 

Chair Rae Lynn Botsford – Present Gerald Fischer, PW Director - Present 

Commissioner Steve Deller – Present Dan Zinder, Associate Planner - Present 

Commissioner Doug Eaglebear – Present               Julie Larson, Planning Specialist - Present 

Commissioner Jennifer Satter – Present 

Commissioner Jacob Giberson – Present 

Commissioner Connie Farrens - Present 

 
CHAIR OPENING COMMENT: 
Chair Botsford announced that Commissioner Lumb stepped down from the Planning Commission.  She 
explained that the position is now open for application for “in city” residents as the available positions for 
“out of city” residents are full.  Applications can be found on the City website. 
 
MINUTES: 
Chair Botsford confirmed with the Planning Commissioners that they have received and reviewed the 
minutes for March 4, 2020 Chair Botsford called for a motion to approve the minutes. A motion to 
approve the minutes was made by Commissioner Deller, a second was received by Commissioner Satter. 
Motion passes 6-0. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
• New construction of a 7,380 sq. ft “AutoZone” auto parts store. The proposed location is Lot 6 of the 

approved Cascade Center development along W. Main Street, south of Leroy Avenue.  City File 

SDR01-2020 

Chair Botsford called the public hearing to order and read the hearing script into the record.   

 
 
 



Page 2 – January 15, 2020 Planning Commission Minutes  

CITY STAFF REPORT: 
Associate Planner Zinder gave the staff report which can be found in the meeting packet. The staff report 
includes the applicable standards and criteria, executive summary and a recommendation from staff 
including conditions and exhibits. Exhibit A: Findings of Fact; Exhibit B: SDR01-2020 Application Package 
(including application, narrative and property legal description); Exhibit C: ODOT Comments; Exhibit D: 
Molalla Public Works Comments. 

 
Associate Planner Zinder introduced the proposed site design review application as a new retail space 
(AutoZone) located in the Cascade Center development along W. Main Street, south of Leroy Ave.  The 
proposed site is zoned C-2 (General Commercial).  Associate Planner Zinder explained that the application was 
deemed complete November 30, 2020 and that the application complies with all the applicable provisions of 
the underlying zoning district and all the Development and Design Standards of Division II.  Associate Planner 
Zinder highlighted that the application is tied to the Cascade Center TIS and the applicant will be connecting to 
Cascade Center Utilities.  He further explained that city staff worked with the applicant to resolve some design 
issues regarding windows and fencing to the exterior of the building for better public appeal.  Conditions of this 
project include working with Cascade Center Developers to ensure landscaping and civic spaces are in 
conformance with City standard.  Associate Planner Zinder also addressed another condition stating that the 
Cascade Center approach permit from ODOT must be issued prior to applicant receiving building permit 
authorizations from the City.  

 
Associate Planner Zinder stated that City Staff is encouraging the Planning Commission to approve the 
Site Design Review (SDR01-2020) subject to conditions of approval found in the staff report. 

  
COORESPONDENCE: 
Chair Botsford asked if staff had received any other materials or correspondence, they did not. 
 
PUBLIC TESTIMONY: 
Shawn Nguy of Navix Engineering is the Consultant for AutoZone spoke.  He thanked City Staff and 
expressed his pleasure of working with them.  Mr. Nguy also stated that AutoZone accepted every 
condition for approval and asked the Commission to approve the application so that AutoZone could move 
forward. 

 
QUESTIONS FROM PLANNING COMMISSION: 
Commissioner Satter inquired about the Signal at Molalla Ave and Main, as well as the flashing beacon light 
at Leroy and Hwy 211 being conditions of approval for Cascade Center Development.  She asked Public 
Works Director Gerald Fischer for an update on where these projects stood.  

 
Public Works Director Fisher stated that the intersection at Molalla Ave and HWY 211 are mostly done 
and anticipate being under construction by August or September.  Cascade Center developers are 
submitting revised plans for frontage improvements and the Leroy intersection to ODOT next week.  
Once ODOT approves the plans and issues the permits, ODOT will at the same time issue the access 
permit which will get things going.  Director Fisher stated that the City will not be able to approve the 
Subdivision plat until the improvements are done or unless ODOT is satisfied that the bonding is in 
place.  Director Fisher went on to explain that none of the retail spaces within the development will get 
a Certificate of Occupancy until the improvements are complete. 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 – January 15, 2020 Planning Commission Minutes  

Commissioner Giberson questioned the lack of windows and aesthetic to the West elevation of the building. 
 

Associate Planner Zinder responded that that is the way the design was proposed and because of the 
apartments on the West side of the building it seemed best for privacy and a good match for uses.  

 
Commissioner Deller inquired about Page 18 of the Staff Report section B regarding approach 
permit and if this applied to the applicant of the development? 

 
Associate Planner Zinder stated that the approach permit applies to the Cascade Center developer 
and not AutoZone. 
 
Commissioner Deller asked about the stormwater plan being part of the landscaping plan. 

 
Associate Planner Zinder explained that there was some question about whether the stormwater 
ought to be included in the calculations for landscaping.  In the end, stormwater is included in the 
landscaping plan. 

 
Commissioner Deller followed up by asking if the stormwater and landscaping plans would be 
consistent throughout the development?   

 
Public Works Director Fisher respond by adding that the stormwater and water quality swales are 
counted as part of landscaping because of the treatment in it.  Next to each building stormwater 
and swales are connected, some, mostly stormwater features are underground.  When everything is 
calculated it exceeds the city landscaping requirements. 
 
Commissioner Deller added that he appreciated staff’s forethought of how pedestrians were going 
to walk through the site and modifying the sidewalks to show that. 
 
Chair Botsford closed the public hearing with no additional comments coming forth 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION DISCUSSION: 
 
With no additional discussion or deliberation Chair Botsford suggested someone propose an 
approval. 
 
Commissioner Giberson made a motion to approve the site design review based on the exhibits and 
staff report.  Commissioner Deller seconded it. Motion passes 6-0. 
 
REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

Public Works Director Fischer shared his Public Works report that he provides to Council at the second 
meeting of each month.  The City has received the executed financial agreement for the 213/Toliver 
roundabout project.  The Water Master plan has taken a bit of a hit due to Covid, but the team is working 
on the plan.  Patrol Street sewer and water begins next week. 

 

Associate Planner Zinder shared that a temporary Food Cart Ordinance and the Planning Fee Changes will 
be going in front of City Council on July 8th.  He also updated the Commission on CHTC.  DEQ has issued a 
violation and Stop Work order against CHTC.  City Manager, Dan Huff and our City Attorney’s continue to 
work on the CHTC issue.   



Page 4 – January 15, 2020 Planning Commission Minutes  

Associate Planner Zinder also announced that our Planning Director is no longer with the City of Molalla 
and that the City is looking to hire an interim planner.  The interim planner would be brought on to help 
staff catch up on projects that have been lingering for some time, including a permanent food truck 
ordinance, the self-storage matter presented to the Commission months ago and the industrial/residential 
zoning issues that the Commission has brought to staff as a concern.   

 
ADJOURNMENT: 
Motion was made by Commissioner Satter to adjourn the meeting, 2nd received from Commissioner 
Farrens. Meeting was adjourned at 7:11pm. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair, Rae Lynn Botsford Date 
 

 
 
 

ATTEST:    
Dan Huff, City Manager 



                Planning & Community Dev.   
                                  117 N Molalla Avenue 

                                                                        PO Box 248 
                                           Molalla, Oregon 97038 
                                       Phone: (503) 759-0205 

                                                                                                            communityplanner@cityofmolalla.com 

 
 

CITY OF MOLALLA STAFF REPORT SDR03-2020 

Lots 1, 2, and 3 of Cascade Center – Grocery Outlet, Dollar Tree, 

and Future Retail Space 

 
Date: July 27, 2020 for the August 5, 2020 Planning Commission Meeting  

 

File No.: SDR03-2020 

 

Proposal: New construction of 37,000 sqft of retail space on Lots 1, 2, and 3 of the 

approved Cascade Center development along the south side of OR-211, 

between Leroy Avenue and Hezzie LN. Lots 1 and 2 are designed for Grocery 

Outlet and Dollar Tree respectively and the use for Lot 3 has not yet been 

identified. 

 

Address:  Current: 121 S Hezzie LN  

 

Tax Lots: Current Lots: 00800 of Map 52E08C 

 

Applicant: Woodblock Architecture. 
 827 SW 2nd Ave. #300.  
 Portland OR, 97204 
 

Property Owners: CASCADE CENTER MOLALLA LLC 

Current Use:  The subject parcels are currently vacant land 

 

 

  



I. APPLICABLE STANDARDS AND CRITERIA: 
 

Molalla Municipal Code, Title 17, Development Code 

1. Division II, Zoning Regulations  
 

Chapter 17-2.2.030 Allowed Uses 
Chapter 17-2.2.040 Lot and Development Standards 

 

2. Division III, Community Design Standards  

Chapter 17-3.2.040 Non-Residential Buildings, 
Chapter 17-3.3 Access and Circulation, 
Chapter 17-3.4 Landscaping, Fences and Walls, Outdoor Lighting, 
Chapter 17-3.5 Parking and Loading, 
Chapter 17-3.6 Public Facilities 

 
3. Division IV, Application Review Procedures and Approval Criteria 

 
* Chapter 17-4.1.040 Type III Procedure (Quasi-Judicial Review – Public Hearing) 
 

 

  



II. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Proposal: 
The Applicants/Owners propose new construction of 37,000 sqft of retail space on 
Lots 1, 2, and 3 of the approved Cascade Center development along the south side of 
OR-211, between Leroy Avenue and Hezzie LN. Lots 1 and 2 are designed for Grocery 
Outlet and Dollar Tree respectively and the use for Lot 3 has not yet been identified. 
The applicant proposes to use a private access point from the extended Leroy 
Avenue, south of OR-HWY 211, approved as part of the original Cascade Center Site 
Design Review (DRW01-2019) on June 5, 2019. The current zoning of the properties is 
General Commercial (C-2), and no change to the zoning designation is proposed. 

 
Site Description: 
The proposed site, located on Lots 1, 2, and 3 of Cascade Center Development, totals 
3.6 ac of vacant land. It is located on the southern side of OR-211 in Molalla between N 
Hezzie LN and Leroy Ave and will consist of the northeastern portion of the property 
currently addressed at 121 S Hezzie LN. The property is currently vacant and cleared. 
The site has a slight slope descending from its high point in the southeast corner to its 
low point in the northwest corner.  

 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Uses: 
The project site is directly abutted by residentially zoned (R-3, medium-high 
residential) land to the west. The rest of the property is surrounded by commercially 
zoned land (C-2, general commercial). Residential land to the west includes a large 
apartment complex, Stoneplace Apartments and Bear Creek Subdivision to the 
northwest. Commercial neighbors include a dental office to the north, across OR-211 
and other undeveloped portions of Cascade Center Development to the south and 
west. 

 

Public Agency Responses: 
Staff sent notice of the project to the City’s Public Works Director, Fire Marshal, and 
the Oregon Department of Transportation. The City has included responses from ODOT 
as Exhibit C and incorporated responses from Molalla Fire Department and Public 
Works as Exhibits D and E. 

 
Public Notice and Comments:  
On July 7th, 2020, notice of the public hearing was sent to all property owners 
within 300 feet of the subject properties and to a group of interested parties. The 
notice was posted on the City’s website on July 14, 2020 and published in the 
Molalla Pioneer on July 22, 2020. Signage containing public notice information was 
posted on the property on July 22, 2020. As of Wednesday, July 21, Staff had 
received no public comment on the application. 

  



III. Recommendation 
 
Based on the application materials and findings demonstrating compliance with the 
applicable criteria, staff recommends approval of Site Design Review SDR03-2020, 
subject to the following conditions of approval. This approval is based on the Applicant’s 
written narrative, and supplemental application materials. Any modifications to the 
approved plans other than those required by this decision will require a new land use 
application and approval. 

 

1. Conditions Requiring Resolution Prior To Submitting 
Building Permit Applications to the City of Molalla: 
 

a. The Applicant shall submit building permits showing all street facing 
building frontages that meet the 60% transparency threshold. For the 
purposes of this project, this standard shall apply to frontage facing the 
northern “shopping street” (MMC Section 17-3.2.040, D, 6).  
 

b. The Applicant shall design the west and southern frontages to meet 
transparency requirements or propose alternative screening methods 
to increase visual appeal of these frontages. Staff and the Applicant 
have discussed options including adding transparency elements to the 
northeast corner of the building on Lot 1, trees as buffers along the 
eastern and southern facing lot frontages, and clerestory windows on 
the southern frontage (MMC Section 17-3.2.040, D, 9).   

 

c. The Applicant shall incorporate window ornamentation elements into 
design and identify them on building permit elevations (MMC Section 
17-3.2.040, D, 10). 

 

d. The applicant shall design the southern elevation to provide visual 
relief in accordance with articulation provisions (MMC Section 17-
3.2.040, E, 1).  

 

e. The applicant shall design the southern elevation to provide visual 
relief in accordance with articulation provisions (MMC Section 17-
3.2.040, E, 2). 

 

f. The Applicant shall provide detail showing that all proposed 
mechanical equipment shall be appropriately sited and screened in 



compliance with Section 17-2.040 G of Molalla Municipal Code. 
 

g. To enhance pedestrian safety, the Applicant shall either redesign the 
building on Lot 2 to connect to the building on Lot 3 or otherwise 
provide a complete and permanent physical barrier of the 10’ gap 
between the buildings on Lot 2 and Lot 3 to prohibit pedestrian access 
(MMC Section 17-3.3.040, B, 2). 

 

h. As a condition of approval, the Applicant shall submit landscaping 
plans demonstrating compliance with the 5% landscaping requirement 
for the C2 zone (MMC Section 17-3.4.030, B). 

 

i. As a condition of approval, the Applicant shall submit a landscaping 
plan showing all onsite plantings in buffer areas shall be 5 gallon and 
no shrub planting shall be less than 2 gallons (MMC Section 17-
3.4.030, C 3 and 4). 

 

j. As a condition of approval, the Applicant shall submit landscaping 
plans demonstrating compliance with the 10% landscaping 
requirement for parking areas (MMC Section 17-3.4.030, E, 1). 

 

k. The Applicant shall submit a landscaping plan showing all onsite 
plantings in buffer areas shall be 5 gallon and no shrub planting shall 
be less than 2 gallons (MMC Section 17-3.4.030, F, 2). 

 

l. Design for ADA parking stalls and amenities shall be consistent with all 
ADA requirements (MMC Section 17-3.5.030, H). 

 

m. Civil drawings for building permits shall show truck turning radius into 
the Leroy Ave ROW (MMC Section 17-3.5.050, C). 

 

n. The Applicant shall submit information necessary to calculate system 
development charges at time of building plan submittal (Molalla Public 
Works). 

 

o. Domestic water and sanitary sewer facilities will be obtained from 
main line connections and/or extensions. Separate engineering 
drawings reflecting the installation of these public utilities will be 



required (Molalla Public Works). 
 

p. All public utility/improvement plans submitted for review shall be 
based upon a 22”x 34” format and shall be prepared in accordance 
with the City of Molalla Public Work’s Standards (Molalla Public 
Works). 

 

q. Plans submitted for review shall meet the requirements described in 
Section 1 of the Molalla Standard Specifications for Public Works 
Construction (Molalla Public Works). 

 

r. Sanitary sewer designs require review by Oregon Department of 
Environmental Quality. Applicant shall be responsible for submission of 
plans to state agency and all associated fees. Applicant’s Engineer will 
be required to submit final report to DEQ and provide a copy of the 
report to the City (Molalla Public Works). 

 

s. All public improvement designs shall meet the requirements of the 
Molalla Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction as 
amended by the Public Works Director (Molalla Public Works). 

 

t. The Applicant shall verify turning radius in and around the buildings 
and parking lot for apparatus as well (Molalla Fire Department). 

 

u. Electrical boxes shall not be placed within 4 feet of a hydrant (Molalla 
Fire Department). 

 

v. No landscaping (shrubs, trees, large rocks) shall be designed or placed 
within 3 feet of the cap of the hydrants (Molalla Fire Department). 

 

w. No parking shall be allowed within 10 each direction of each hydrant 
(Molalla Fire Department). 

 

x. Twenty-six (26) feet of clear space shall be provided in front of each 
hydrant (Molalla Fire Department).  

 

 



2. Conditions to be Met Prior To Construction: 

 
a. Public utility/improvements will not be permitted until all plans are 

approved by Staff, all fees have been paid, all necessary permits, 
bonding, right-of-way and easements have been obtained and 
approved by staff, and Staff is notified a minimum of 24 hours in 
advance (Molalla Public Works). 

 
b. The applicant shall contact the Oregon Water Resources Department 

and inform them of any existing wells located on the subject site. Any 
existing well shall be limited to irrigation purposes only. Proper 
separation, in conformance with applicable State standards, shall be 
maintained between irrigation systems, public water systems, and 
public sanitary systems. Should the project abandon any existing wells, 
they shall be properly abandoned in conformance with State standards 
and supply the City with a copy of the final document (Molalla Public 
Works). 

 

c. Building permits shall not be issued until ODOT has issued a “Permit to 
Construct a State Highway Approach” for all State Highway Approaches 
and a “Permit to Occupy or Perform Operations Upon a State highway” 
for all work in the State right of way consistent with the Molalla 
Planning Commission Decision for DRW01-2019 Cascade Center. 

 
3. Conditions to be Met During Construction: 

 
a. All survey monuments on the subject site or that may be subject to 

disturbance within the construction area, or the construction of any 
off-site improvements shall be adequately referenced and protected 
prior to commencement of any construction activity. If the survey 
monuments are disturbed, moved, relocated or destroyed as a result 
of any construction, the project shall, at its cost, retain the services of a 
registered professional land surveyor in the State of Oregon to restore 
the monument to its original condition and file the necessary surveys 
as required by Oregon State law. A copy of any recorded survey shall 
be submitted to Staff. (Molalla Public Works). 

 

b. General Erosion Control – The applicant shall install, operate and 
maintain adequate erosion control measures in conformance with the 
standards adopted by the City of Molalla and DEQ during the 
construction of any public/private utility and building improvements 



until such time as approved permanent vegetative materials have been 
installed. Applicant or Applicant’s Contractor shall be responsible for all 
erosion control requirements under the 1200-C permit and shall 
coordinate directly with DEQ for questions related to 1200-C permit 
compliance (Molalla Public Works). 

 
 

4. Conditions to be Met Prior To Occupancy: 
 

a. Start of building construction activities are subject to compliance with Cascade 

Center requirements for Planning and Public Works as well as requirements tied 

to TCO and CO. No occupancy shall be granted until all street improvements are 

completed (Molalla Public Works). 

 

b. General Easements – A 10-foot wide public utility easement shall be dedicated 

to the City adjacent to all public right-of-way and no structures are allowed to 

encroach into the easement. Applicant shall be required to submit a legal 

description and exhibit map for review and sign City easements. Once 

completed, applicant will be required to record easements with the County 

Recorder’s Office and return the original document to the City prior to final 

occupancy (Molalla Public Works). 

 

c. Occupancy permits shall not be issued until all required work on the State 

highway right of way has been completed and accepted by ODOT. 

 

5. Ongoing Conditions: 
 

a. No visual obstruction (e.g., sign, structure, solid fence, or shrub vegetation) 
greater than 2.5 feet in height shall be placed in “vision clearance areas” at the 
intersection of the proposed site access road and Leroy Avenue (MMC Section 
17-3.3.030, G).   
 

b. All landscaping shall be maintained in good condition, or otherwise replaced by 
the property owner (MMC Section 17-3.4.030, G).   

 

c. As an ongoing condition of approval, any future fencing or walls shall be 
maintained in good condition or otherwise replaced by the property owner 
(MMC Section 17-3.4.040, F).  



 

d. As a condition of approval fences and walls shall not include any prohibited 
materials (MMC Section 17-3.4.040, D). 

 

e. As a condition of approval, all outdoor lighting shall be maintained in good 
condition, or otherwise replaced by the property owner (MMC Section 17-
3.4.050, E). 

 

f. Addressing for the new structures shall be visible from the street (Molalla Fire 
Department). 

  



 

 

IV. EXHIBITS:  

Exhibit A: Findings of Fact 

Exhibit B: SDR01-2020 Application Package (including 

application, narrative, and property legal description) 

Exhibit C:  

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit A: 

City Staff’s Findings of Fact 
  



Per Chapter 17-4.2.050 Approval Criteria, an application for Site Design Review shall be 
approved if the proposal meets all the following criteria. The Planning Official, in approving the 
application, may impose reasonable conditions of approval, consistent with the applicable 
criteria. 

 

A. The application is complete, in accordance with Section 17-4.2.040; 

 

Findings: The City received the Applicant’s proposal on June 8, 2020 and deemed it complete on 

July 8, 2020.  

 

B. The application complies with all of the applicable provisions of the 

underlying Zoning District (Division II), including, but not limited to, building 

and yard setbacks, lot area and dimensions, density and floor area, lot 

coverage, building height, building orientation, architecture, and other 

applicable standards; 

 

Findings: Applicable Criteria under Division II. Zoning Regulations for this project include:  

Chapter 17-2.2.030 Allowed Uses 
Chapter 17-2.2.040 Lot and Development Standards 
 

 
Chapter 17-2.2.030 Allowed Uses 

 
Findings: Staff finds the subject property is zoned C-2 (General Commercial). Grocery Outlet (Lot 
1), Dollar Tree (Lot 2), and the yet unknown retail uses on Lot 3 best match the use category of 
“Retail Sales and Services,” which is an allowed use in this zone.   
 

 
Chapter 17-2.2.040 Lot and Development Standards 

 

Findings: Staff find that the Applicant’s submitted application and site plan show compliance on 
building height, fences, lot coverage, landscaping, and setbacks. Requirements for a 10’ Public 
Utility Easement and pedestrian amenities require that the build to line setback be further than 
the 0ft requirement on the eastern portion of Lot 1 of the proposed development. Additional 
detail is provided under section Chapter 17-3.2.040 B.   
 

 



C. The proposal includes required upgrades, if any, to existing development 

that does not comply with the applicable zoning district standards, pursuant 

to Chapter 17-1.4 Nonconforming Situations; 

 

Findings: The Applicant’s proposal does not include non-conforming elements. This section does 

not apply. 

 

D. The proposal complies with all the Development and Design Standards of 

Division III, as applicable: 

Findings: Applicable Criteria under Division III. Community Design Standards for this project 

include: 

Chapter 17-3.2.040 Non-Residential Buildings 

Chapter 17-3.2.050 Civic Space and Pedestrian Amenities 

Chapter 17-3.3 Access and Circulation 

Chapter 17-3.4 Landscaping, Fences and Walls, Outdoor Lighting, 

Chapter 17-3.5 Parking and Loading, 

Chapter 17-3.6 Public Facilities 

 

Chapter 17-3.2.040 Non-Residential Buildings 
 

B. Building Orientation. The following standards apply to new buildings and building 
additions that are subject to Site Design Review. The Planning Official may approve 
adjustments to the standards as part of a Site Design Review approval, pursuant to 
Chapters 17-4.2 and 17-4.7, respectively. 

 
1. Buildings subject to this section shall conform to the applicable build-to line 

standard in Table 17-2.2.040.E, as generally illustrated in Figure 17-3.2-6. The 
standard is met when at least 50 percent of the abutting street frontage has a 
building placed no farther from at least one street property line than the build-to 
line in Table 17-2.2.040.E; except in the Central Commercial C-1 zone, at least 80 
percent of the abutting street frontage shall have a building placed no farther 
from at least one street property line than the required build-to-line. The Planning 
Official, through Site Design Review, may waive the build to line standard where it 
finds that one or more of the conditions in subdivisions a through g occurs. 
 

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?topic=17-iii-17_3_2-17_3_2_040&frames=on


a. A proposed building is adjacent to a single-family dwelling, and an 
increased setback promotes compatibility with the adjacent dwelling. 
 

b. The standards of the roadway authority preclude development at the 
build-to line. 

 
c. The applicant proposes extending an adjacent sidewalk or plaza for 

public use, or some other pedestrian amenity is proposed to be placed 
between the building and public right-of-way, pursuant to Section 17-
3.2.050 and subject to Site Design Review approval. 

 
d. The build-to line may be increased to provide a private open space (e.g., 

landscaped forecourt), pursuant to Section 17-3.2.050, between a 
residential use in a mixed-use development (e.g., live-work building with 
ground floor residence) and a front or street property line. 

 
e. A significant tree or other environmental feature precludes strict 

adherence to the standard and will be retained and incorporated in the 
design of the project. 

 
f. A public utility easement or similar restricting legal condition that is 

outside the applicant’s control makes conformance with the build-to line 
impracticable. In this case, the building shall instead be placed as close 
to the street as possible given the legal constraint, and pedestrian 
amenities (e.g., plaza, courtyard, landscaping, outdoor seating area, etc.) 
shall be provided within the street setback in said location pursuant to 
Section 17-3.2.050. 

 
g. An existing building that was lawfully created but does not conform to 

the above standard is proposed to be expanded and compliance with this 
standard is not practicable. 

 
Findings: Staff recommends allowing the build-to-line setback further than the allowed 0’ due 
the necessity for a 10’ Public Utility Easement (section f above) and pedestrian amenities 
included on the Applicant’s submitted site plan along the northern elevation (section “c” above). 
Criteria are met. 
    

2. Except as provided in subsections C.5 and 6, all buildings shall have at least one 
primary entrance (i.e., tenant entrance, lobby entrance, breezeway entrance, or 
courtyard entrance) facing an abutting street (i.e., within 45 degrees of the street 
property line); or if the building entrance must be turned more than 45 degrees 
from the street (i.e., front door is on a side or rear elevation) due to the 
configuration of the site or similar constraints, a pedestrian walkway must 



connect the primary entrance to the sidewalk in conformance with Section 17-
3.3.040. 

 
Findings: The Applicant’s submitted site and elevation plans show primary entrances oriented 
towards the access road off of Leroy Ave on the north side of the property. This satisfies the 
conditions of subsection C6, allowing for buildings to orient towards a “shopping street.” The 
building entrance also orients towards OR-211. Criterion is met.   
 

4. Off-street parking shall be oriented internally to the site to the extent practicable 
and shall meet the Access and Circulation requirements of Chapter 17-3.3, the 
Landscape and Screening requirements of Chapter 17-3.4, and the Parking and 
Loading requirements of Chapter 17-3.5. 

 
Findings: Parking is oriented internally to the site to the extent that constraints of the DRW01-
2019 Site Design Review Cascade Center approvals allow. Criterion is met. 
 

5. Where a development contains multiple buildings and there is insufficient street 
frontage to meet the above building orientation standards for all buildings on the 
subject site, a building’s primary entrance may orient to plaza, courtyard, or 
similar pedestrian space containing pedestrian amenities and meeting the 
requirements under Section 17-3.2.050, subject to Site Design Review approval. 
When oriented this way, the primary entrance(s), plaza, or courtyard shall be 
connected to the street by a pedestrian walkway conforming to Section 17-
3.3.040. 

 
Findings: The Applicant’s proposed site plan shows a primary entrance that orients towards a 
pedestrian plaza that extends westward from Leroy Avenue. Direct walkways are provided from 
the civic space extending from Leroy Ave along the proposed “shopping street” access and a 
pedestrian walkway interior to the site. Criterion is met. 
 
 

C. Large-Format Developments. Plans for new developments, or any phase thereof, with a 

total floor plate area (ground floor area of all buildings) greater than 35,000 square feet, 

shall meet all of the following standards in subsections C.1 through 9, as generally 

illustrated in Figure 17-3.2-7. The Planning Official may approve adjustments to the 

standards as part of a Site Design Review approval, pursuant to Chapters 17-4.2 and 17-

4.7, respectively. 

 
8. Where a development contains multiple buildings and there is insufficient street 

frontage to meet the above building orientation standards for all buildings on the 
subject site, a building’s primary entrance may orient to plaza, courtyard, or 
similar pedestrian space containing pedestrian amenities and meeting the 
requirements under Section 17-3.2.050, subject to Site Design Review approval. 



When oriented this way, the primary entrance(s), plaza, or courtyard shall be 
connected to the street by a pedestrian walkway conforming to Section 17-
3.3.040. 

 
Findings: The Applicant’s submitted site plan does not show an entrance oriented toward the 
abutting street, S Leroy Ave. The Applicant requests an allowance on this standard because 
Grocery Outlet stores are designed with one primary entrance to prevent loss. Staff recommends 
granting this allowance. The proposed main entrance off of the northern access shopping street 
is in closer proximity to residential properties directly to the west and is directly accessible for 
pedestrians by way of the proposed onsite north-south directional walkway from the sidewalk 
along OR-211. Additionally, the Applicant’s proposed site plan provides civic space in the 
northeast corner of the Lot 1 building as for benches and bicycle facilities.  
 

D. Primary Entrances and Windows. The following standards, as generally illustrated in 
Figures 17-3.2-8 and 17.3.2-9, apply to new buildings and building additions that are 
subject to Site Design Review. The Planning Official may approve adjustments to the 
standards as part of a Site Design Review approval, pursuant to Chapters 17-4.2 and 17-
4.7, respectively. 

 
4.   Street Level Entrances. All primary building entrances shall open to the sidewalk and 

shall conform to Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements, as applicable. 
Primary entrances above or below grade may be allowed where ADA accessibility is 
provided. 

 
Findings: Staff finds that the primary building entrance does open to a sidewalk along the 
northern frontage of the proposed buildings. All primary building entrances shall conform to ADA 
requirements.   
 
 

6.  Street Level Entrances. All primary building entrances shall open to the sidewalk and 
shall conform to Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements, as applicable. 
Primary entrances above or below grade may be allowed where ADA accessibility is 
provided. 

 
Findings: The Applicant’s submitted site plan shows 58% transparency across the north facing 
frontage along the accessway adjacent to the primary entrance. The building on Lot 1 shows 52% 
transparency, the building on Lot 2 shows 73% transparency, and the building on Lot 3 shows 
74% transparency. As a condition of approval, the Applicant shall submit building permits 
showing all street facing building frontages that meet the 60% transparency threshold. For the 
purposes of this project, this standard shall apply to frontage facing the northern “shopping 
street.”  
 



9.   Side and Rear Elevation Windows. All side and rear elevations, except for zero lot line 
or common wall elevations, where windows are not required, shall provide not less 
than 30 percent transparency. 

 
Findings: The Applicant’s submitted application shows 34% transparency on the west facing 
elevation, 22% transparency on the east facing elevation, and 8% transparency on the south 
facing elevation. Staff finds that the West facing elevation meets the transparency requirements. 
South and East facing elevations do not. As a condition of approval, the Applicant shall design the 
west and southern frontages to meet transparency requirements or propose alternative 
screening methods to increase visual appeal of these frontages. Staff and the Applicant have 
discussed options including adding transparency elements to the northeast corner of the 
building on Lot 1, trees as buffers along the eastern and southern facing lot frontages, and 
clerestory windows on the southern frontage.   
 

10. Side and Rear Elevation Windows. All side and rear elevations, except for zero lot line 
or common 

 
Findings: As a condition of approval, the Applicant shall incorporate window ornamentation 
elements into design and identify them on building permit elevations. 

 
E. Articulation and Detailing. The following standards apply to new buildings and building 

additions that are subject to Site Design Review. The Planning Official may approve 
adjustments to the standards as part of a Site Design Review approval, pursuant to 
Chapters 17-4.2 and 17-4.7, respectively. 

 
1. Articulation. All building elevations that orient to a street or civic space shall have 

breaks in the wall plane (articulation) of not less than one break for every 30 feet of 
building length or width, as applicable, pursuant to the following standards, which are 
generally illustrated in Figures 17-3.2-10, 17-3.2-11, and 17-3.2-12. 
 

a. A “break” for the purposes of this subsection is a change in wall plane of 
not less than 24 inches in depth. Breaks may include, but are not limited to, 
an offset, recess, window reveal, pilaster, frieze, pediment, cornice, 
parapet, gable, dormer, eave, coursing, canopy, awning, column, building 
base, balcony, permanent awning or canopy, marquee, or similar 
architectural feature. 
 

b. The Planning Official through Site Design Review may approve detailing 
that does not meet the 24-inch break-in-wall-plane standard where it finds 
that proposed detailing is more consistent with the architecture of 
historically significant or historic-contributing buildings existing in the 
vicinity. 

 



c. Changes in paint color and features that are not designed as permanent 
architectural elements, such as display cabinets, window boxes, 
retractable and similar mounted awnings or canopies, and other similar 
features, do not meet the 24-inch break-in-wall-plane standard. 

 

d. Building elevations that do not orient to a street or civic space need not 
comply with the 24-inch break-in-wall-plane standard but should 
complement the overall building design. 

 
Findings: Staff finds that the Applicant’s submitted elevations do not show appropriate breaks on 
the southern elevation of Lot 2. As a condition of approval, the applicant shall design the 
southern elevation to provide visual relief in accordance with articulation provisions. 
 

2. Articulation. All building elevations that orient to a street or civic space shall have 
breaks in the wall plane (articulation) of not less than one break for every 30 feet of 
building length or width, as applicable, pursuant to the following standards, which are 
generally illustrated in Figures 17-3.2-10, 17-3.2-11, and 17-3.2-12. 

Findings: Staff finds that the Applicant’s submitted elevations do not show appropriate change in 
materials on the southern elevation of Lot 2. As a condition of approval, the applicant shall 
design the southern elevation to provide visual relief in accordance with articulation provisions. 

 
G.    Mechanical Equipment. 

 
1.    Building Walls. Where mechanical equipment, such as utility vaults, air compressors, 

generators, antennae, satellite dishes, or similar equipment, is permitted on a building 
wall that abuts a public right-of-way or civic space, it shall be screened pursuant to 
Chapter 17-3.4. Standpipes, meters, vaults, and similar equipment need not be 
screened but shall not be placed on a front elevation when other practical alternatives 
exist; such equipment shall be placed on a side or rear elevation where practical. 

 
2.   Rooftops. Except as provided below, rooftop mechanical units shall be set back or 

screened behind a parapet wall so that they are not visible from any public right-of-
way or civic space. Where such placement and screening are not practicable, the 
Planning Official may approve painting of mechanical units in lieu of screening; such 
painting may consist of colors that make the equipment visually subordinate to the 
building and adjacent buildings, if any. 

 
3.   Ground-Mounted Mechanical Equipment. Ground-mounted equipment, such as 

generators, air compressors, trash compactors, and similar equipment, shall be 
limited to side or rear yards and screened with fences or walls constructed of 



materials like those on adjacent buildings. Hedges, trellises, and similar plantings may 
also be used as screens where there is adequate air circulation and sunlight, and 
irrigation is provided. The City may require additional setbacks and noise attenuating 
equipment for compatibility with adjacent uses. 

 
Findings: The Applicant’s submitted site plan (Sheet A0) shows “electrical service main switch 
gear near the northeast corner of the building. It is not clear if this gear is ground or wall 
mounted. As a condition of approval, the Applicant shall provide detail showing that all proposed 
mechanical equipment shall be appropriately sited and screened in compliance with Section 17-
2.040 G of Molalla Municipal Code.  

  



Chapter 17-3.3 Access and Circulation 
 
17-3.3.030 Vehicular Access and Circulation 

Findings: Access to the site will be taken from a private access from the approved DRW01-2019, 
Cascade Center. Staff highlights the following sections of Chapter 17-3.3 as requiring attention:  
 
 

B.   Permit Required. Vehicular access to a public street (e.g., a new or modified driveway 
connection to a street or highway) requires an approach permit approved by the 
applicable roadway authority. 

 
Findings: Applicant and/or site developer shall obtain approach permits from the City of Molalla 
and ODOT prior to occupancy. 
 
 

C.   Traffic Study Requirements. The City, in reviewing a development proposal or other action 
requiring an approach permit, may require a traffic impact analysis, pursuant to Section 
17-3.6.020, to determine compliance with this Code. 

 
Findings: The proposed retail uses are consistent with retail uses identified for Lots 1, 2, and 3 in 
from the TIA dated March 6th, 2019, prepared by Kittleson and Associates, and submitted as 
part of DRW01-2019 Cascade Center. No additional traffic study analysis is required for this 
application. 
 
 

G.  Vision Clearance. No visual obstruction (e.g., sign, structure, solid fence, or shrub 
vegetation) greater than 2.5 feet in height shall be placed in “vision clearance areas” at 
street intersections. The minimum vision clearance area may be modified by the Planning 
Official through a Type I procedure, upon finding that more or less sight distance is 
required (i.e., due to traffic speeds, roadway alignment, etc.). Placement of light poles, 
utility poles, and tree trunks should be avoided within vision clearance areas. 

 
Findings: As an ongoing condition of approval, no visual obstruction (e.g., sign, structure, solid 
fence, or shrub vegetation) greater than 2.5 feet in height shall be placed in “vision clearance 
areas” at the intersection of the proposed site access road and Leroy Avenue.   
 
 
 

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?topic=17-iii-17_3_3-17_3_3_040&frames=on


17-3.3.040 Pedestrian Access and Circulation 

B.  Standards. Developments shall conform to all the following standards for pedestrian 
access and circulation as generally illustrated in Figure 17-3.3-3: 

 
1. Continuous Walkway System. A pedestrian walkway system shall extend throughout 

the development site and connect to adjacent sidewalks, if any, and to all future 
phases of the development, as applicable. 

 
2.   Safe, Direct, and Convenient. Walkways within developments shall provide safe, 

reasonably direct, and convenient connections between primary building entrances 
and all adjacent parking areas, recreational areas, playgrounds, and public rights-of-
way conforming to the following standards: 

 
a.   The walkway is reasonably direct when it follows a route that does not deviate 

unnecessarily from a straight line or it does not involve a significant amount of 
out-of-direction travel. 

 
b.  The walkway is designed primarily for pedestrian safety and convenience, 

meaning it is reasonably free from hazards and provides a reasonably smooth and 
consistent surface and direct route of travel between destinations. The Planning 
Official may require landscape buffering between walkways and adjacent parking 
lots or driveways to mitigate safety concerns. 

 
c.   The walkway network connects to all primary building entrances, consistent with 

the building design standards of Chapter 17-3.2 and, where required, Americans 
with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements. 

 
Findings: The Applicant’s submitted site plan shows a 10’ walkway along the northern elevation, 
including additional pedestrian plaza space adjacent to the proposed building on Lot 1. 
Additionally, a north-south walkway is proposed through the parking lot on site 1, connecting 
sidewalks along OR-211 with the Lot 1 building entrance. The proposed lots have pedestrian 
direct connections to other onsite lots either through onsite walkways or via Leroy Avenue 
sidewalks.  
 
Staff review identified a potential pedestrian safety concern. The Applicant’s submitted site plan 
shows a 10’ gap on Lot 2 between the buildings on Lots 2 and 3. This gap connects the northern 
“shopping street” frontage to loading areas on the southern frontage of the building and is not 
intended as a walkway. Additionally, that space has the potential to become an attractive 
nuisance.  As a condition of approval, the Applicant shall either redesign the building on Lot 2 to 
connect to the building on Lot 3 or otherwise provide a complete and permanent physical barrier 
of the 10’ gap between the buildings on Lot 2 and Lot 3 to prohibit pedestrian access.  
 
  

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?topic=17-iii-17_3_3-17_3_3_040&frames=on


Chapter 17-3.4 LANDSCAPING, FENCES AND WALLS, OUTDOOR LIGHTING 
 
Findings: Staff highlights the following sections of Chapter 17-3.4 as requiring attention:  
 
 
17-3.4.030 Landscaping and Screening 
 

B.   Minimum Landscape Area. All lots shall conform to the minimum landscape area 
standards of the applicable zoning district, as contained in Tables 17-2.2.040.D and 17-
2.2.040.E. The Planning Official, consistent with the purposes in Section 17-3.4.010, may 
allow credit toward the minimum landscape area for existing vegetation that is retained 
in the development. 

 
Findings: The minimum required landscaping in the C-2 zone is 5%. The Applicant’s submitted 
site plan is for 156,978 sqft, requiring 7849 sqft of landscaping. The Applicant’s submitted 
application included landscaping plans and landscaping areas were included on the submitted 
site plan but did not include calculations demonstrating compliance with this standard. As a 
condition of approval, the Applicant shall submit landscaping plans demonstrating compliance 
with the 5% landscaping requirement for the C2 zone. Staff anticipates that the Applicant will 
provide evidence for public record showing demonstration of compliance at the August 5th 
Planning Commission Meeting.     
 

C.   Plant Selection. A combination of deciduous and evergreen trees, shrubs, and ground 
covers shall be used for all planted areas, the selection of which shall be based on local 
climate, exposure, water availability, and drainage conditions, among other factors. 
When new vegetation is planted, soils shall be amended and irrigation shall be provided, 
as necessary, to allow for healthy plant growth. The selection of plants shall be based on 
all the following standards and guidelines: 

 
3.   Trees shall be not less than two-inch caliper for street trees and one and one-half-inch 

caliper for other trees at the time of planting. Trees to be planted under or near power 
lines shall be selected to not conflict with power lines at maturity. 

 
4.   Shrubs shall be planted from five-gallon containers, minimum, where they are for 

required screens or buffers, and two-gallon containers minimum elsewhere. 
 
Findings: In addition to landscaping areas between parking areas and adjacent sites and 
roadways, Staff finds that the areas along the southern frontage on Lots 1, 2, and 3 and along 
eastern building frontage on Lot 1 should be considered buffer areas. Larger plantings will help 
obscure lesser articulated portions of the buildings. As a condition of approval, the Applicant 
shall submit a landscaping plan showing all onsite plantings in buffer areas shall be 5 gallon and 
no shrub planting shall be less than 2 gallons. 
 
 

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?topic=17-iii-17_3_4&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?topic=17-iii-17_3_4-17_3_4_030&frames=on


E.  Parking Lot Landscaping. All the following standards shall be met for parking lots. If a 
development contains multiple parking lots, then the standards shall be evaluated 
separately for each parking lot. 

 
1.   A minimum of 10 percent of the total surface area of all parking areas, as measured 

around the perimeter of all parking spaces and maneuvering areas, shall be 
landscaped. Such landscaping shall consist of shade trees distributed throughout the 
parking area. A combination of deciduous and evergreen trees, shrubs, and ground 
cover plants is required. The trees shall be planned so that they provide a partial 
canopy cover over the parking lot within five years. At a minimum, one tree per 12 
parking spaces on average shall be planted over and around the parking area. 

 
Findings: The minimum required landscaping for parking areas is 10%. The Applicant’s submitted 
application included landscaping plans and landscaping areas were included on the submitted 
site plan but did not include calculations demonstrating compliance with this standard. As a 
condition of approval, the Applicant shall submit landscaping plans demonstrating compliance 
with the 10% landscaping requirement for parking areas. Staff anticipates that the Applicant will 
provide evidence for public record showing demonstration of compliance at the August 5th 
Planning Commission Meeting.     
 
 

G.  Maintenance. All landscaping shall be maintained in good condition, or otherwise 
replaced by the property owner. 

 
Findings:  As an ongoing condition of approval, all landscaping shall be maintained in good 
condition, or otherwise replaced by the property owner. 
 
 
 

  



17-3.4.040 Fences and Walls 
 
17-3.4.040 (F) Maintenance. Fences and walls shall be maintained in good condition, or 
otherwise replaced by the property owner. 
 
Findings: Staff finds that proposed fences are associated with storage areas and are not in the 
setback area. As an ongoing condition of approval, any future fencing or walls shall be 
maintained in good condition or otherwise replaced by the property owner. As a condition of 
approval fences and walls shall not include any prohibited materials. 

 

 

  

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?topic=17-iii-17_3_4-17_3_4_040&frames=on


17-3.4.050 Outdoor Lighting 
 
17-3.4.50 (C)    Standards. 
 

1. Light poles, except as required by a roadway authority or public safety agency, shall not 
exceed a height of 20 feet; pedestal- or bollard-style lighting shall be used to illuminate 
walkways. Flag poles, utility poles, and streetlights are exempt from this requirement. 
 

2. Where a light standard is placed over a sidewalk or walkway, a minimum vertical 
clearance of eight feet shall be maintained. 

 
3. Outdoor lighting levels shall be subject to review and approval through Site Design 

Review. As a guideline, lighting levels shall be no greater than necessary to provide for 
pedestrian safety, property or business identification, and crime prevention. 
 

4. Except as provided for up-lighting of flags and permitted building-mounted signs, all 
outdoor light fixtures shall be directed downward, and have full cutoff and full shielding 
to preserve views of the night sky and to minimize excessive light spillover onto adjacent 
properties. 
 

5. Lighting shall be installed where it will not obstruct public ways, driveways, or walkways. 
 

6. Walkway lighting in private areas shall have a minimum average illumination of not less 
than 0.2 foot-candles. Lighting along public walkways shall meet the current version of 
the Public Works Design Standards and AASHTO lighting requirements. 
 

7. Active building entrances shall have a minimum average illumination of not less than two 
foot-candles. 
 

8. Surfaces of signs shall have an illumination level of not more than two foot-candles. 
 

9. Parking lots and outdoor services areas, including quick vehicle service areas, shall have a 
minimum illumination of not less than 0.2 foot-candles, average illumination of 
approximately 0.8 foot-candles, and a uniformity ratio (maximum-to-minimum ratio) of 
not more than 20:1. 
 

10. Where illumination grid lighting plans cannot be reviewed or if fixtures do not provide 
photometrics and bulbs are under 2,000 lumens, use the following guidelines: 

a. Poles should be no greater in height than four times the distance to the property 
line. 

b. Maximum lumen levels should be based on fixture height. 
c. Private illumination shall not be used to light adjoining public right-of-way. 

 
11. Where a light standard is placed within a walkway, an unobstructed pedestrian  

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?topic=17-iii-17_3_4-17_3_4_050&frames=on


through zone not less than 48 inches wide shall be maintained. 
 

12. Lighting subject to this section shall consist of materials approved for outdoor use and 
shall be installed according to the manufacturer’s specifications. 

 
Findings: The Applicant’s submitted lighting plan is compliant with the above requirements. 
Criteria are met.   
 
 
17-3.4.050 (E) Maintenance. For public health and safety, outdoor lighting shall be maintained in 
good condition, or otherwise replaced by the property owner.  
 
Findings: As a condition of approval, all outdoor lighting shall be maintained in good condition, or 
otherwise replaced by the property owner. 
 

 

  



Chapter 17-3.5 PARKING AND LOADING 

 

17-3.5.030 Automobile Parking 
 

A. Minimum Number of Off-Street Automobile Parking Spaces. Except as provided by this 
subsection A, or as required for Americans with Disabilities Act compliance under 
subsection G, off-street parking shall be provided pursuant to one of the following three 
standards: 

 
1. The standards in Table 17-3.5.030.A; 

 
Findings: The Applicant’s submitted application shows one-hundred and thirty-one (131) auto 
parking spaces. Per Table 17-3.5.030.A, Commercial Retail use is required to provide one (1) 
parking space per 400 sf. The Applicants propose 37,600 sf of retail floor space. Staff counts a 
minimum of 94 required parking stalls for the proposed development. The Applicant’s proposed 
parking exceeds the minimum required and does not exceed the maximum number of 1.5x the 
minimum parking allowance (143 spaces). This criterion is met.  
 
 

F. Parking Stall Design and Minimum Dimensions. Where a new off-street parking area is 
proposed, or an existing off-street parking area is proposed for expansion, the entire 
parking area shall be improved in conformance with this Code. At a minimum the parking 
spaces and drive aisles shall be paved with asphalt, concrete, or other City-approved 
materials, provided the Americans with Disabilities Act requirements are met, and shall 
conform to the minimum dimensions in Table 17-3.5.030.F and the figures below. All off-
street parking areas shall contain wheel stops, perimeter curbing, bollards, or other 
edging as required to prevent vehicles from damaging buildings or encroaching into 
walkways, sidewalks, landscapes, or the public right-of-way. Parking areas shall also 
provide for surface water management, pursuant to Section 17-3.6.050. 

 
Findings: The Applicant’s submitted application shows stall depth of 18’, stall width of 9’. Drive 
aisle widths are of varying width, but all meet or exceed the required width of 23’. All parking 
stalls are angled at 90 degrees. These dimensions either equal or exceed the requirements from 
Table 17-3.5.030 for 90-degree angled parking stalls: 
 
Length: 18’ 
Width: 8.5’ 
Drive Aisle: 23’ 
 
Criterion is met. 
 

H. Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Parking shall be provided consistent with ADA 

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?topic=17-iii-17_3_5&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?topic=17-iii-17_3_5-17_3_5_030&frames=on


requirements, including, but not limited to, the minimum number of spaces for 
automobiles, van-accessible spaces, location of spaces relative to building entrances, 
accessible routes between parking areas and building entrances, identification signs, 
lighting, and other design and construction requirements. 

 
Findings: The Applicant’s submitted site plan shows two (2) ADA parking stalls. As a condition of 
approval, design for ADA parking stalls and amenities shall be consistent with all ADA 
requirements. 
 
 
 

  



17-3.5.040 Bicycle Parking 
 

A. Standards. Bicycle parking spaces shall be provided with new development and, where a 
change of use occurs, at a minimum, shall follow the standards in Table 17-3.5.040.A. 
Where an application is subject to Conditional Use Permit approval or the applicant has 
requested a reduction to an automobile-parking standard, pursuant to Section 17-
3.5.030.C, the Planning Official may require bicycle parking spaces in addition to those in 
Table 17-3.5.040.A. 

 
Table 17-3.5.040.A Minimum Required Bicycle Parking Spaces 

 

 
 

B.  Design. Bicycle parking shall consist of staple-design steel racks or other City-approved 
racks, lockers, or storage lids providing a safe and secure means of storing a bicycle, 
consistent with the Public Works Design Standards. 

 
C.  Exemptions. This section does not apply to single-family and duplex housing, home 

occupations, and agricultural uses. 
 
D.  Hazards. Bicycle parking shall not impede or create a hazard to pedestrians or vehicles 

and shall be located to not conflict with the vision clearance standards of Section 17-
3.3.030.G. 

 
Findings: The Applicant’s submitted site plan shows 27 stalls for bicycle parking. Per Molalla Development 

Code Table 17-3.5.040.A , commercial developments are required to have two bicycle parking spaces per 

primary use or 1 per 5 required vehicle spaces, whichever is greater. Per Table 17-3.5.030.A, 94 vehicle 

parking spaces are required, which puts the bicycle parking requirement at 19 stalls. Criterion A is met. 

The Applicant has proposed staple racks which are consistent with Molalla Design Standards and the 

proposed location creates no conflict or vision clearance issues for pedestrian or vehicle traffic. Criterion 

B and Criterion D are satisfied. Criterion C does not apply.   

 

17-3.5.050 Loading Areas 

C. Standard. Where an off-street loading space is required, it shall be large enough to accommodate 

the largest vehicle that is expected to serve the use without obstructing vehicles or pedestrian 

traffic on adjacent streets and driveways. The Planning Official may restrict the use of other public 

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?topic=17-iii-17_3_5-17_3_5_030&frames=on


rights-of-way, so applicants are advised to provide complete and accurate information about the 

potential need for loading spaces. 

Findings: As shown on the Applicant’s Preliminary Site Plan, loading and unloading will occur in the area 

south of the building. The Applicant’s submitted application states that this area can accommodate a 

typical WB-67 AutoZone delivery truck. This criterion is met. As a condition of approval, civil drawings for 

building permits shall show truck turning radius into the Leroy Ave ROW. 

 

  



Chapter 17-3.6 PUBLIC FACILITIES  
 
Findings: Staff highlights the following sections of Chapter 17-3.4 as requiring attention:  
 
17-3.6.010 Purpose and Applicability 
 

A.  Purpose. The standards of Chapter 17-3.6 implement the public facility policies of the City 
of Molalla Comprehensive Plan and adopted City plans. 

 
B.  Applicability. Chapter 17-3.6 applies to all new development, including projects subject to 

Land Division (Subdivision or Partition) approval and developments subject to Site Design 
Review where public facility improvements are required. All public facility improvements 
within the city shall occur in accordance with the standards and procedures of this 
chapter. When a question arises as to the intent or application of any standard, the City 
Engineer shall interpret the Code pursuant to Chapter 17-1.5. 

 
B. Public Works Design Standards. All public facility improvements, including, but not limited 

to, sanitary sewer, water, transportation, surface water and storm drainage and parks 
projects, whether required as a condition of development or provided voluntarily, shall 
conform to the City of Molalla Public Works Design Standards. Where a conflict occurs 
between this Code and the Public Works Design Standards, the provisions of the Public 
Works Design Standards shall govern. 

 
D.  Public Improvement Requirement. No building permit may be issued until all required 

public facility improvements are in place and approved by the City Engineer, or otherwise 
bonded, in conformance with the provisions of this Code and the Public Works Design 
Standards. Improvements required as a condition of development approval, when not 
voluntarily provided by the applicant, shall be roughly proportional to the impact of the 
development on public facilities. Findings in the development approval shall indicate how 
the required improvements directly relate to and are roughly proportional to the impact 
of development. 

 
Findings: Applicant will be required to connect to services provided in Cascade Center development. 

Utility connections cannot be made until onsite improvements are approved/accepted by City. The 

Applicant will also be required to submit information necessary to calculate system development charges 

at time of building plan submittal. Start of building construction activities are subject to compliance with 

Cascade Center requirements for Planning and Public Works as well as requirements tied to TCO and CO. 

No TCO or CO’s can be issued until public improvements are completed and accepted under both City PW 

and ODOT permits. 

AutoZone’s use as a retailer for auto parts is consistent with retail uses identified for Lot 6 in from the TIA 
dated March 6th, 2019, prepared by Kittleson and Associates, and submitted as part of DRW01-2019 
Cascade Center. No additional traffic study analysis is required for this application.  

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?topic=17-iii-17_3_6&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?topic=17-iii-17_3_6-17_3_6_010&frames=on


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit B: 
 

SDR01-2020 Application Package 
(including application, narrative, 
and property legal description)  



















































































































































RETAIL
RETAIL

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

SS

LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 4

LOT 1

W W W W W W W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

RETAIL

LOT 3

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

DUMPSTER

SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS

SS SS SS SS

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS

9'-6"7'-6"

17'-6" 6'-6"

3
0

'
-
0
"

26'-0"

2
8
'
-
3

"

144'-0"80'-8"9'-4 3/4"96'-0"

8
'
-
6

"
4

6
'
-
2

"
1

8
'
-
8

"
1

2
1

'
-
4

"

8
3

'
-
1

 
1

/
4

"

161'-6"81'-0"18'-0"90'-0"25'-6 13/16"

26'-0" 18'-0"18'-0"

1
0

'
-
1
1

"
1

8
'
-
0

"
3
0

'
-
0

"

26'-0"30'-0"

9
'
-
0
"

T
Y

P

9'-0"

TYP

L
E

R
O

Y
 
A

V
E

.

RECESSED

LOADING

DOCK

43'-6 1/8"

10'-0"

PUE

49'-6"

1
5
'
-
0
"

8
1

'
-
0
"

1
5

'
-
0
"

6
3
'
-
0

"
1

5
'
-
0
"

2
4

'
-
0
"

1
0

3
'
-
0
 
1
/
2

"

27'-0" 45'-0" 9'-1" 8'-11" 36'-0 1/2" 14'-11 1/2" 36'-0"

6
4

'
-
1

0
"

3
0

1
'
-
9
 
1
/
2
"

ACCESS DRIVE

ACCESS DRIVE

A
C

C
E

S
S

 
D

R
I
V

E

1
5

'
-
0

"

15' UTILITY EASEMENT

15' UTILITY

EASEMENT

1
5
'
-
0

"

15'-0"

15' UTILITY

EASEMENT

15' UTILITY EASEMENT

1
5

'
-
0

"

LOADING

ZONE

LOADING

ZONE

WM

WM

WM

WILLIAM DAVID HARDISTER, ARCHITECT

W O O D B L O C K  A R C H I T E C T U R E ,  I N C .

8 2 7  S W  2 N D  A V E ,  S U I T E  3 0 0

PORTLAND, OR  |  97204  |  P 503.889.0604

Project #17-133

SITE PLAN REVIEW

07.02.20

REV DESCRIPTION DATE

©
 
W

O
O

D
B

L
O

C
K

A
R

C
H

I
T

E
C

T
U

R
E

C
A

S
C

A
D

E
 
C

E
N

T
E

R
/
 
L

O
T

S
 
1

,
 
2

,
 
A

N
D

 
3

1
2
1
 
S

.
 
H

E
Z

Z
I
E

 
L
A

N
E

M
O

L
A

L
L

A
,
 
O

R
E

G
O

N

S
H

E
L

L
 
B

U
I
L

D
I
N

G
S

SITE AREA INFORMATION

LOTAREA

LOT 1 - 90,000 SF

LOT 2 - 30,312 SF

LOT 3 - 36,666 SF

 

IMPERVIOUS AREA

LOT 1 - 51,998 SF

LOT 2 - 19,134 SF

LOT 3 - 9,900 SF

LOT COVERAGE

LOT 1 - 20%

LOT 2 - 32%

LOT 3 - 27%

BUILDING USE &  AREAS

PROPOSED BUILDING USES

COMMERCIAL OFFICE, RETAIL, RESTAURANT:

LOT 1 - 18,000 SF

LOT 2 - 9,700 SF

LOT 3 - 9,900 SF

 

PARKING INFORMATION

REQUIRED PARKING:

PARKING REQUIRED

LOT 1 - 45 STALLS

LOT 2 - 25 STALLS

LOT 3 - 25 STALLS

TOTAL PARKING REQ'D - 95

TOTAL PARKING PROVIDED 

LOT 1 - 81 STALLS

LOT 2 - 27 STALLS

LOT 3 - 24 STALLS

TOTAL PARKING REQ'D - 131

ACCESSIBLE STALLS  REQ'D. - 5

ACCESSIBLE STALLS PROVIDED - 5

NOTE; PROPERTIES WILL HAVE ACROSS ACCESS

AGREEMENT FRO PARKING

REQUIRED BIKE PARKING

REQUIRED - 1/ EVERY 5 VEHICLE PARKING = 26

PROVIDED - 28

1

KEYNOTES - SITE PLAN

2

3

4

BIKE PARKING

5

6

7

8

LANDSCAPE AREA. SEE LANDSCAPE PLANS

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

BENCH SEATING

9

10

11

TRASH ENCLOSURE

12

FLUSH CURB WITH TACTILE WARNING

FLOW THROUGH PLANTER

7'-4" PAINTED PRECISION CMU SCREEN WALL

ELECTRICAL SERVICE MAIN SWITCH GEAR

CART CORRAL

STORMWATER TREATMENT DETENTION FACILITY

CONCRETE WHEEL STOP

5

5

5

4

1

1

10

10

10

7

7

11

3

3

3

3

11

11

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2
2

2

2

2

11

11

8

9

6

6

12

2

2

SCALE: 1" = 20'

SITE PLAN

1

A0

SITE PLAN

A0 SITE PLAN AND SITE INFORMATION

A0.1 EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN

A1 FLOOR PLAN

A2 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A3 3D VIEWS AT CORNER PLAZA

L1.3 LANDSCAPE PLAN

L1.4 LANSDCAPE PLAN

L1.5 LANDSCAPE NOTES AND PLANT SCHEDULES

ARCHITECTURAL

SHEET INDEX

LANDSCAPE

LIGHTING

13 6" CONC CURB

131313

13

13

1313

UTILITY SYMBOL LEGEND

W

STORM DRAINAGE LINE

DOMESTIC WATER

SS

SANITARY SEWER LINE

WM

WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
18,000 SF %%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
9,700 SF %%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9,900 SF %%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

david
Text Box
EL1              SITE LIGHTING PLAN



david
Typewritten Text
A0.1



RETAIL
RETAIL

LOT 1

LOT 2

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

RETAIL

LOT 3

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

9'-6"7'-6"

17'-6" 6'-6"

3
0

2
8
'
-
3
"

144'-0"80'-8"9'-4 3/4"96'-0"

8
'
-
6
"

4
6
'
-
2
"

1
8
'
-
8
"

1
2
1
'
-
4
"

8
3
'
-
1
 
1
/
4
"

161'-6"81'-0"18'-0"90'-0"25'-6 13/16"

1
0
'
-
1
1
"

1
8
'
-
0
"

3
0

9'-0"

TYP

RECESSED

LOADING

DOCK

43'-6 1/8"

10'-0"

PUE

1
0
3
'
-
0
 
1
/
2
"

6
4
'
-
1
0
"

F
L

O
W

 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

P
L

A
N

T
E

R

BIKE

PARKING

CART

CORRAL

COVERED

BENCH

SEATING

STEEL CANOPY

ABOVE, TYPICAL

COVERED

ENTRY

TRASH AND

RECYCLING

TRASH AND

RECYCLING

TRASH AND

RECYCLING

7'-4" HIGH

PAINTED

SMOOTH FACE

PRECISION CMU

SCREEN WALL

STORMWATER

TREATMENT

DETENTION

FACILITY

FLOW THROUGH

PLANTER

SEASONAL

PRODUCTS

SEASONAL

PRODUCTS

SEASONAL

PRODUCTS

LS

LS

LS

LS

LS

LS

BIKE

PARKING

STORMWATER

TREATMENT

DETENTION

FACILITY

LS

1
1

'
-
7

"

7'-4 1/2" 7'-4 1/2"

4
'
-
0

 
1

/
2

"

LOADING

ZONE

LOADING

ZONE

WILLIAM DAVID HARDISTER, ARCHITECT

W O O D B L O C K  A R C H I T E C T U R E ,  I N C .

8 2 7  S W  2 N D  A V E ,  S U I T E  3 0 0

PORTLAND, OR  |  97204  |  P 503.889.0604

Project #17-133

SITE PLAN REVIEW

07.02.20

REV DESCRIPTION DATE

©
 
W

O
O

D
B

L
O

C
K

A
R

C
H

I
T

E
C

T
U

R
E

C
A

S
C

A
D

E
 
C

E
N

T
E

R
/
 
L
O

T
S

 
1
,
 
2
,
 
A

N
D

 
3

1
2
1
 
S

.
 
H

E
Z

Z
I
E

 
L
A

N
E

M
O

L
A

L
L

A
,
 
O

R
E

G
O

N

S
H

E
L
L
 
B

U
I
L
D

I
N

G
S

SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

FLOOR PLANS

1

A1

1

A2

2

A2

3

A2

4

A2

FLOOR PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
18,000 SF %%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
9,700 SF %%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9,900 SF %%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD



T.O. GO ENTRY

35' - 0"

T.O. DT ENTRY

28' - 0"

T.O. F.F.

0"

T.O. GO ENTRY

35' - 0"

T.O. F.F.

0"

SILL

4' - 0"

B.O. CANOPY

10' - 0"

LOW ROOF

18' - 0"

T.O. ENTRY

26' - 0"

T.O. PILLARS

23' - 0"

1234

ABCD

A B C D

A B C D E F G

H J

70.18 S.F.

WINDOW

70.18 S.F.

WINDOW

70.18 S.F.

WINDOW

56 S.F.

WINDOW

100 S.F.

WINDOW

56 S.F.

WINDOW

56 S.F.

WINDOW

68 S.F.

WINDOW

41 S.F.

WINDOW

56 S.F.

WINDOW

28 S.F.

WINDOW

70 S.F.

WINDOW

56 S.F.

WINDOW

4'-8"
26'-11"

4'-8" 6'-3 1/4" 35'-11 1/2" 6'-10 5/8"
34'-8"

6'-10"

13'-3 1/4" 4'-8"
21'-4" 4'-8"

28'-8 3/4"
4'-8"

22'-2 3/4"

PAINTED

CEMENTITIOUS

PANEL WITH METAL

REVEAL SYSTEM

PAINTED SMOOTH

FACE CMU

3
'
-
6

"

6
'
-
0

"

2
'
-
6

"

PAINTED WOOD

CORNICE

THIN BRICK

VENEER. STACK BOND

THIN BRICK

VENEER. RUNNING

BOND

THIN BRICK

VENEER. STACK BOND

9'-3"

1'-9 1/4" 28'-0"
4'-0" 28'-0"

PAINTED

CEMENTITIOUS

PANEL WITH METAL

REVEAL SYSTEM

PAINTED WOOD

CORNICE

PAINTED STEEL

CANOPY,

TYPICAL

STOREFRONT AREA CALCULATION  - LOTS 1 & 2

780 SF X .6 = 468 SF REQUIRED

461 SF PROVIDED = 59%

STOREFRONT AREA CALCULATION  - LOT 3

343 SF X .6 = 206 SF REQUIRED

210.54 SF PROVIDED = 61%

STOREFRONT AREA CALCULATION  - LOT 3

364 SF X .3 = 109 SF REQUIRED

126 SF PROVIDED = 35%

4'-0" 28'-0" 1'-9 1/16"

4'-8"26'-11"4'-8"21'-5 1/2"4'-8 1/2"21'-5"4'-8 1/2"21'-6 1/2"4'-8 1/2"21'-6"4'-8 1/2"

PAINTED

CEMENTITIOUS

PANEL WITH METAL

REVEAL SYSTEM

PAINTED

CEMENTITIOUS

PANEL WITH METAL

REVEAL SYSTEM

PAINTED

CEMENTITIOUS

PANEL WITH METAL

REVEAL SYSTEM

3
'
-
6

"

6
'
-
0

"

2
'
-
6

"

STOREFRONT AREA CALCULATION  - LOT 3

339 SF X .3 = 102 SF REQUIRED

112 SF PROVIDED = 33%

PAINTED SMOOTH

FACE PRECISION CMU

56 S.F.

WINDOW

56 S.F.

WINDOW

THIN BRICK

VENEER. RUNNING

BOND

THIN BRICK

VENEER. STACK BOND

THIN BRICK

VENEER. RUNNING

BOND

PAINTED SMOOTH

FACE PRECISION CMU

PAINTED BENT

PLATE STEEL

CANOPY,

TYPICAL

LOT #1 LOT #2 LOT #3

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 
L

I
N

E

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 
L
I
N

E

LOT #3 LOT #2

LOT #1

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 
L

I
N

E

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 
L

I
N

E

PAINTED SMOOTH

FACE PRECISION CMU

PAINTED SMOOTH

FACE CMU

DECORATIVE

SCONCE, TYPICAL

3
'
-
6

"

6
'
-
0

"

2
'
-
6

"

TRASH ENCLOSURE

2
3

'
-
1

1
"

2
6

'
-
0

"

3
1
'
-
0
 
1

/
2

"

7'-4" HIGH PAINTED

CMU SCREEN WALL

PAINTED SMOOTH

FACE PRECISION CMU

METAL PANEL ON

STEEL FRAME  GATE

CLEAR ANODIZED

ALUMINUM

STOREFRONT

PAINTED CMU

SCREEN WALL

ELECTRICAL

SWITCH GEAR

PAINTED STEEL PIPE

GUARDRAIL

PAINTED

CEMENTITIOUS

PANEL WITH METAL

REVEAL SYSTEM

2
0

'
-
0

"

2
4

'
-
0

"

1
8

'
-
0

"

2
7

'
-
9

 
1
/
2

"

2
3

'
-
0

"

2
3

'
-
0

"

2
0

'
-
0

"

8
'
-
0

"

LED WALL PACK.

MOUNT AT 14'.

TYPICAL

1
4

'
-
7

"

2
7

'
-
4

"

LED WALL PACK.

MOUNT AT +14'.

TYPICAL

WILLIAM DAVID HARDISTER, ARCHITECT

W O O D B L O C K  A R C H I T E C T U R E ,  I N C .

8 2 7  S W  2 N D  A V E ,  S U I T E  3 0 0

PORTLAND, OR  |  97204  |  P 503.889.0604

Project #17-133

SITE PLAN REVIEW

07.02.20

REV DESCRIPTION DATE

©
 
W

O
O

D
B

L
O

C
K

A
R

C
H

I
T

E
C

T
U

R
E

C
A

S
C

A
D

E
 
C

E
N

T
E

R
/
 
L
O

T
S

 
1
,
 
2
,
 
A

N
D

 
3

1
2
1
 
S

.
 
H

E
Z

Z
I
E

 
L
A

N
E

M
O

L
A

L
L

A
,
 
O

R
E

G
O

N

S
H

E
L
L
 
B

U
I
L
D

I
N

G
S

SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

NORTH ELEVATION

1

SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

SOUTH ELEVATION

2

SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

LOT #1 EAST ELEVATION (LEROY AVE.)

3

SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

LOT #3 WEST ELEVATION 

4

SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

LOT #1 WEST ELEVATION 

5

A2

EXTERIOR

ELEVATIONS



WILLIAM DAVID HARDISTER, ARCHITECT

W O O D B L O C K  A R C H I T E C T U R E ,  I N C .

8 2 7  S W  2 N D  A V E ,  S U I T E  3 0 0

PORTLAND, OR  |  97204  |  P 503.889.0604

Project #17-133

SITE PLAN REVIEW

07.02.20

REV DESCRIPTION DATE

©
 
W

O
O

D
B

L
O

C
K

A
R

C
H

I
T

E
C

T
U

R
E

C
A

S
C

A
D

E
 
C

E
N

T
E

R
/
 
L
O

T
S

 
1
,
 
2
,
 
A

N
D

 
3

1
2
1
 
S

.
 
H

E
Z

Z
I
E

 
L
A

N
E

M
O

L
A

L
L

A
,
 
O

R
E

G
O

N

S
H

E
L
L
 
B

U
I
L
D

I
N

G
S

 

VIEW FROM NORTHEAST

1

A3

 

DETAIL VIEW AT PEDESTRIAN PLAZA

2

3D VIEWS





david
Polygon

david
Rectangle

david
Rectangle

david
Line

david
Ellipse

david
Ellipse

david
Ellipse

david
Ellipse

david
Ellipse

david
Line

david
Line

david
Line

david
Line

david
Typewritten Text
5     S-9

david
Ellipse

david
Ellipse

david
Ellipse

david
Ellipse

david
Ellipse

david
Line

david
Line

david
Line

david
Typewritten Text
5     S-1

david
Line

david
Ellipse

david
Ellipse

david
Ellipse

david
Ellipse

david
Ellipse

david
Line

david
Line

david
Line

david
Typewritten Text
5     S-3

david
Line

david
Ellipse

david
Ellipse

david
Ellipse

david
Ellipse

david
Ellipse

david
Line

david
Line

david
Line

david
Typewritten Text
5     S-5

david
Line

david
Line

david
Line

david
Line

david
Line

david
Line

david
Ellipse

david
Ellipse

david
Ellipse

david
Ellipse

david
Ellipse

david
Line

david
Line







 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit C: 
 

Oregon Department  
of Transportation Comments 

  



 

July 28, 2020                                    ODOT #10548 

ODOT Response  

Project Name: Cascade Commercial Retail 

Buildings 

Applicant: IE Construction 

Jurisdiction: City of Molalla Jurisdiction Case #: SDR03-2020 

Site Address: 121 S Hezzie Lane, Molalla, OR 

97038 

Legal Description: 05S 02E 08C 

Tax Lot(s): 00400 

State Highway: OR 211  

The site of this proposed land use action is adjacent to OR 211. ODOT has permitting authority for this facility 

and an interest in ensuring that this proposed land use is compatible with its safe and efficient operation. Please 

direct the applicant to the District Contact indicated below to discuss ODOT permit requirements. 

COMMENTS/FINDINGS 

The proposal is to construct two retail buildings totaling 37,000SF on lots 1, 2, and 3 in the approved Cascade 

Center commercial subdivision and shopping center. The City of Molalla Planning Commission Decision for 

DRW01-2019 Cascade Center includes conditions of approval requiring substantial improvements on the State 

highway including right of way donations, roadway improvements, sidewalk improvements, new public road 

approach, private approaches, signal at Molalla Ave and a flashing beacon at Leroy Ave. These conditions of 

approval are intended to mitigate the impacts of development within Cascade Center on public transportation 

facilities.  

Building permits for the proposed retail buildings should not be issued until ODOT has issued a “Permit to 

Construct a State Highway Approach” for all State Highway Approaches and a “Permit to Occupy or Perform 

Operations Upon a State Highway” for all work in the State right of way consistent with the Cascade Center 

land use decision. These permits require ODOT approval of 100% construction plans. The city should not issue 

occupancy permits until all required work within the State highway right of way has been completed and 

accepted by ODOT.  

ODOT RECOMMENDED LOCAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

• Building permits shall not be issued until ODOT has issued a “Permit to Construct a State Highway 

Approach” for all State Highway Approaches and a “Permit to Occupy or Perform Operations Upon a 

State highway” for all work in the State right of way consistent with the Molalla Planning Commission 

Decision for DRW01-2019 Cascade Center. 

• Occupancy permits shall not be issued until all required work on the State highway right of way has 

been completed and accepted by ODOT. 

Please send a copy of the Notice of Decision including conditions of approval to: 

ODOT_R1_DevRev@odot.state.or.us 

Development Review Planner: Marah Danielson 503.731.8258, 

marah.b.danielson@odot.state.or.us 

Traffic Contact: Avi Tayar, P.E. 503.731.8221 

Abraham.tayar@odot.state.or.us 

District Contact: Loretta Kieffer 503.667.7441 

Loretta.L.KIEFFER@odot.state.or.us 

 

Oregon 
 Kate Brown, Governor 

Department of Transportation 
Region 1 Headquarters 

123 NW Flanders Street 

Portland, Oregon  97209 

(503) 731.8200 

FAX (503) 731.8259 

 

mailto:ODOT_R1_DevRev@odot.state.or.us


 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit D: 
 

Molalla Fire Department Comments 
 

 

 
 

 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Molalla Fire District No 73 

320 N Molalla Avenue 

Molalla, OR 97038 

 

Office No:  503.829.2200 

Office Fax: 503.829.5794 

 

www.molallafire.org

Below are comments for Grocery Outlet based on the plans submitted with the 
application date June 12, 2020:  
 

1. A turning Radius’ verified in and around the buildings and parking lot for 
apparatus as well.  

2. Addressing for the new structures will need to be visible from the street. 
This can be accomplished a few ways. Monument signs large numbers on 
the buildings etc.  

3. Electrical boxes shall not be placed within 4 feet of a hydrant 
4. No land scaping (shrubs, trees, large rocks) shall be placed within 3 feet of 

the cap of the hydrants. 
5. No parking will be allowed within 10 each direction of each hydrant 

  26 feet of clear space shall be provided in front of each hydrant  
 
  
The above comments are based solely on the site plan provided with the packet 
date 6/12/2020. Molalla Fire reserves the right to review and comment on the 
plans that are to be submitted for full review.  
 
 
Review of submitted plans is not an approval of omissions, oversights or 
authorization of non-compliance with any regulations of this agency or of the 
regulations of any other agency.  This decision should not be considered a 
precedent setting recommendation, as we will review each project on a case by 
case basis.  
 

 

 

 

Michael Penunuri 
July 23, 2020 
 

 

 

 

 

 


	8.5.2020 Planning Commission Meeting Packet
	8.5.2020  Planning Commission Agenda
	July 1, 2020 Planning Meeting Minutes 

	Staff Report Draft - 7-27-2020
	SDR03-2020 - Grocery Outlet Complete Application.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1



